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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Directors' report
For the year ended 31 August 2024

The directors present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a trustees' report, and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

During the academic year 2023/2024 the academy trust increased its family from three schools to 9
schools for pupils aged 3 - 18 serving a catchment area of the Diocese of Liverpool. Its academies have a
pupil capacity of 6,101 and had a roll of 5,568 based on the school census as of October 2023. Al
applications will be considered in line with the coordinated admissions scheme for each of the 3 Local
Authority areas the trust serves, and in accordance with the admission arrangements agreed between the
Church of England Diocese of Liverpool and the Catholic Archdiocese of Liverpool,

Structure, governance and management

Canstitution

The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust is a company limited by guarantee
(No. 07007398) and an exempt charity, The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association
are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The charitable company is known as All Saints Multi Academy Trust,

The directors are the trustees of The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust and
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. Details of the directors
who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in the Reference
and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company
in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be reguired, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted
before they ceased to be a member.

Directors' indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omisslons occurring whilst on
Academy Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim.

Methad of recruitment and appeintment or election of directors

The members shall appoint a8 minimum of six Directors, provided that the number of Directors
representing the Archdiocese of Liverpool shall be equal to the number of Directors representing the
Diocese of Liverpoo!. The Chief Executive Officer shall be an ex-officio director.

The Directors may appeint a further two co-opted Directors, with the consent of the sponsor, for a term
not exceeding four years,

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of directors

All Directors are provided with access to policies, procedures, scheme of delegation, minutes, accounts,
budgets, strategic plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors. For
the new directors appointed to the Board during the year, formal induction and training was provided
alongside full Director development day on 19th June 2024,




The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

Organisational structure

During the academic year 2023/24 trust senior leadership was increased in line with the trust growth
strategy to support the 3-year school improvement plan and the needs of the new schools onboarded
during the academic year. The central team grew inline with growth with additional new posts created to
support the trust infrastructure such as appointment of a Deputy CEO, Governance Professional, Director
of ICT and Digital transformation and Director of Safeguarding and Inclusion with a Director of People
appointed in September 2024,

The trust has also moved to an executive head model to support the primary phase with 2 executive heads
supporting 4 primary schools. One secondary scheo! in the trust is supported by a seconded executive
head who is providing mentoring to the new headteacher.

The management structure consists of three levels: Governance (being the Members and Trust Board), and
the Trust Senior Leadership Group now comprising the Chief Executive Officer (who is also the Accounting
Officer), Deputy CEQ/Chief Operations officer, Directors of Scheol Improvement, Director of Intelligence
and projects, Governance Professional, plus the Executive heads and Headteacher for each of the Trusts
Academies. The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and accountability to support
decision making at all levels in line with the scheme of delegation.

The Trust board core functions are:

- Ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic directions.

« Holding the CEO to account for educational performance of the schools, their students, and the
appraisal of its staff,

« Overseeing the finandial performance of the Trust and the schools within, ensuring financial
probity.

» Ensuring that functions relating to the conduct of the Trust and schools are exercised with a view
to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children.

. Establish its sub-committees and the appointment of non-trust board members based on skills
need.

A scheme of delegation has been adopted which sets out the terms of reference for the members,
Directors, sub-commitments and local academy councils. The scheme of delegation is reviewed annually.

The Trust Senlor Leadership Group controls the Academy Trust at an executive level implementing the
policies laid down by the Directors and reporting back to them on a regular basis.

The trust central team provides support and guidance across a core set of functions which include school
improvement, lead practitioners, financial management, estates management, health and safety, people
management, ICT and digital transformation, safeguarding and Inclusion, attendance, data management,
counselling and careers and employability.

Each academy has a senior eadership team, led by an executive head or headteacher, which includes a
combination of head of school, senior/deputy headteacher and assistant headteachers. These {eaders,
along with the trust senior leadership group, are responsible for the day-to-day operation of the
constituent academies, in particular managing the staff.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The trust board delegated the responsibility for setting pay and remuneration for key management
personnel. The remuneration committee established a pay scale attached to each post based on relevant
benchmarking data and guidance included within the School Teacher Pay and Conditions document.
Progression along this pay scale is linked to performance and is reviewed on an annual basis foliowing the
compietion of the performance management cycle.




The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period 2
Full-time equivalent employee number 0.40

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% 2

51%-99% -

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time 23,580
Total pay bill 26,177,000
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage
of total paild facifity time hours -

Engagement with employees

One of the key objectives is to develop a people strategy to embed further a culture of support, and
challenge without fear, to ensure that all people within the Trust are developed, and that appropriate
opportunities for progression exist and are encouraged, resulting in Improved retention of staff, and the
Trust being recognised as an employer of choice.

In developing the people strategy, the trust has introduced several strategies and initiatives to support and
develop its workforce including:

CEO drop-in sesslons encouraging the involvement of ail employees specially in the performance of
the trust.

Trust purchased a software package for each academy to enable them te undertake regular
surveys with their staff. Results are analysed and shared with governors on a regular basis
enabling the academies to develop and maintain a culture of support and chailenge.

Trust has also purchased for all employees a subscription to Smart Clinic which provides a huge
menu of support for all employees including counselling, therapy, online GP, physiotherapy and
much more.

Access via smart clinic to 24/7 service of a confidential counselling service to assist staff with
personal and work related health, wellbeing and performance,

Trust and schools’ senior leadership teams given mentoring and support in a safe place by an
external counsellor.

An annual welcome service has been established for students and staff.

Setting up of a headteacher networking meeting and headteacher newsletter.

In addition to the above the trust central team has continued to develop the induction proegram for all new
staff, with the trust central team providing a face-to-face introduction to the trust and its services. A trust
handbook is currently in development in addition to the academies staff handbook which will provide all
employees with detailed information about the support available and what services are provided centrally,
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Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

During 2023/2024 the trust continues on its journey for a flourishing education system. This included
being part of a pilot program for trust senjor leaders called Flourishing Together. Following on from the
program the trust has recently been invited to join the Church of England’s Flourishing trusts network.

Engagement with suppliers, custamers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust

As a Trust, we aim to maintain the highest standards of integrity in business relationships with suppliers.
We communicate with our suppliers through emails and contact through the trust financial management
system. Suppliers all have a direct channel of contacting the trust for any changes on their supplier
accounts, which are actioned promptiy to avold any delay in payment.

The trust remains committed to prompt payments therefore a crucial performance indicator for the trust is
ensuring that suppliers are paid according to our payment terms and conditions. This Is monitored and
reported monthly in the financial monitor provided to directors.

The trust is committed to fulfilling its civic responsibilities and contributing to the broader common gaod. It
collaborates closely with schools, other trusts, local authorities, dioceses, parents, and various civic
partners to ensure statutery functions are effectively delivered and to act in the best interests of the local
community.

The trust board believes that constant engagement with the ESFA, Local Authorities, and other
government agencies is vital to the success of the trust. The trust continues to engage with sponsors and
key stakeholders through reports, network meetings and publications on the trust website.

Related parties and other connected charities and organtsations

The Academy Trust is sponsored by The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Education Trust, a
chatitable company which is jointly controlled by the Diocese of Liverpool, and the Archdiocese of
Liverpool. The Sponsor is responsible for appointing members of the Board of Directors (as noted above).
The Sponsor supports the Academy Trust by working closely with the Trust Senior Management Team and
the Board of Directors in setting the strategic objectives of the Academy Trust and reviewing plans for
improvement. In addition, the Sponsor is also responsible for monitoring the financial performance of the
Academy Trust,

The trust also engages with Liverpoal Learning Partnership a charitable organisation which supports
Liverpool schools with Initiatives such as Reading, Math’s and Mental Health and Wellbeing. The chief
executive officer (retired August 2024) of this organisation is a director of the trust.

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The principal obhject and activity of the charitable company is the operation of all 9 academies within the
trust:

. to advance the education of the public in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing
a joint Church of England and Roman Catholic secondary school offering a bread curriculum with a
strong emphasis on, but not limited to, the environment to be conducted in accordance with the
principles and practices of both the Church of England and the Roman Catholic Church; and

+ to provide facilities for recreational and other lelsure time occupations for the community at large
in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the conditions of life of the said
community.

The Directors confirm they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s general
guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Academy Trust’s aims and objectives.
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

The maln objectives of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2024 are summarised below:

« successful on-boarding of 6 schools — 2 secondary and 4 primaries

« to develop the central team infrastructure to support trust growth

« to ensure that every child enjoys the same high-quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition,
and care

+ to raise the standard of educational achievement and progress of all students

. to improve the effectiveness of the Academy Trust by keeping the curriculum and organisational
structure under continual review

«+ to provide value for money for the funds expended

. to conduct the Academy Trust’s business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity,
probity and openness; and

. continue to develop Trust growth strategy and school improvement framework.

Objectives, strategies apd activities
The Acaderny Trust’s main abjectives are set out above.

The main strategies for improvement consist of:

. Securing the appointment and retention of strong experienced leadership across the trust including
the central team.

. Securing leadership capacity through increased accountability and high quality continued
professional development for all staff.

. Improving teaching, learning and assessment to secure the best possible outcomes for students.

. Developing the whole child through our unique Christian ethos, values and environmental
specialism to create respectful, caring and compassionate citizens in the community.

. Developing the organisation to provide a financially sustainable future, where funds are available
to invest in improving resources and the learning environment for students.

Public benefit

The Directors have complied with the duty in section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard to
public benefit guidance published by the Charities Commission in defining the strategic direction of the
Academy Trust.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

Secondary sector

2022-23 Attainment outcomes were still in the process of being aligned with 2019 outcomes. This process
of full alignment would be completed in 2023-24. Thus meaning, there was still some variability within key
subject areas such as languages and Computer Science, Therefore, any comparison with previous years
would be statistically flawed. Whilst only two secondary academies were officially part of the Trust (The
Academy of St. Francis of Assisi and The Academy of St. Nicholas), at this stage of outcomes, two other
secondary academies (Hope Academy and St. Margaret’s Church of England Academy) were transitioning
into the trust and had been receiving support from the central school Improvement team.

. The average attainment across all KS4 was 4. This is slightly below the National Average of 4.4,

. Overall Progress 8 was — 0.41. There is some variability across the academies in the Trust and we
have identified key areas for improvement which have informed the Trust School Improvement
Strategy. We have appointed Lead Practitioners in Maths, Science in addition to seconding various
senior leaders to support specialist areas of development.

. The % of students achieving a standard and strong pass in English and math improved this year
across the Trust.

. Attainment at KS5 showed an improvement at the average points of entry and average grade at
both A-Level and Applied General.
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Directors' report (continued)
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Ofsted Section 5 Inspections

St. Margaret’s Church of England Academy was subject to a full inspection in April 2024, The Academy was
judged to be ‘Good’ in all areas. The Academy had previously been judged as Requires Improvement. The
report highlighted the considerable rate of improvement since the Academy had joined the Trust.
“Recently, with the support of the trust, the pace of school improvement has quickened, Considerable and
positive change has been achieved with the support of the vast majority of staff.”

The Academy of St Francis of Assis was subject to a full inspection in April 2024. The overall judgement
was Requires Improvement with a Good for personal development.

Section 48 Joint Denominational Inspection

The Academy of St. Nicholas was subject to a Section 48 loint Denominational Inspection in April 2024.
The Academy was judged to be good In all areas. “The academy remains a significantly improving
community with tangibie and measured success in its Christian mission and vision both within school and
in its links with home, parishes, and church communities in the wider area.”

Primary sector

This report summarises the overall performance of Faith Primary Academy. The performance of the new
schools transitioning to the trust will be reported in the following academic year.

Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) - Good Level of Development (GLD) and Phonics Screening Check
(Year 1)

GLD has increased marginally from the previous year and against the national average. Year 1 phonics
outcomes increased considerably against the previous year by 28.3% to 79.3% which is in line with
national average. This shows an overall upward trend in closing the gap to the national average.
Multiplication Tables check mean average score increased from the previous year against national average.
Key Stage 2 (KS2) - Reading, Writing, and Maths.

Key stage two outcomes were above national average for combined in Reading, Writing and Mathematics
at the Expected Standard and up on previous years outcomes by 41%.

GPS expected was in line with greater depth standard being above national average.

Reading outcomes, 76.6% were considerably up on the previous year by 28.6% and above national
average.

Writing outcomes 73.3% were up on previous year by 21,3% and above national average.

Mathematics 73.3% gap has been closed against the national average with rapid improvement of 30.4%
on the previous year's outcomes at the expected standard.

Key performance indicators
Financial performance is monitored regularly against budget and approved expenditure profiles using a
range of KPI’s and particularly those advised when using the integrated financiat planning tools.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of directors has a reasonable expectation that the academy
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, the hoard of directors continues to adopt the geoing concern basis in preparing the accounts.
Further detalls regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of
accounting policies.

The Directors have made this assessment by preparing the following:
« 3 year indicative budget which includes cashflows

» Student number estimates for the following 3 years
. Cashfiow forecasts until 31 August 2025
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Promoting the success of the academy trust

As the trust board at Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust, we have a legal
responsibility under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in good faith in a way which would be
most likely to promote the company’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and to have
regard to the long-term effect of our decisions on the company and its stakeholders. The information
below alongside our engagement with employees addresses the ways in which, as Trust Board we carry
out this responsibility.

Promoting the Trust's success
The trust is strongly committed to serving the Diocese and Archdiocese of Liverpool to transform the life

chances of all our students and their communities through the highest-quality teaching. Our academies
serve communities with high levels of deprivation and EAL resulting in a high proportion of our students
eligible for free school meals and with special education needs and s continually looking to expand to
reach as many children as possible to improve their quality of life. We strongly believe we are better
together,

Engagement with our students and parents

As a trust, we put our students at the heart of everything we do. That is part of the trust culture ‘and
through partnershlp and collaboration, our academies are places where academic success is achieved.
Parents are continuously informed of the progress of their children and the safeguarding measures in place
to ensure the safety of their children. We communicate with parents through letters but in the main using
our online active MIS system which uses Al to translate into home language which we found to be a
barrier for parental engagement. Academies have developed or are in the process of developing parental
forums and coffee mornings to improve engagement.

Financial review

Financial objectives

The trust operates a GAG pooling methodology for the allocation of ESFA funds across all of its academies
in tine with the GAG pooling policy. This allows the trust to perform better financially, achieving a
strategic, needs-led approach to resourcing, promoting the ethos of one trust looking after all pupils’
interest within the family of schools.

The main strategies for improvement consist of:

. to achieve an annual operating surplus in line with reserve policy;

. 1o centralise repair and malntenance and ICT expenditure to achieve value for money and
alignment of contracts

. to review and align procurement processes across the trust

. to ensure the Academy Trust’s continued liquidity;

. to generate sufficient reserves to fund continued capital investment; and

. to continually develop our trust growth and schoo! improvement strategy.

The majority of the Academy Trusts income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes, The grants
received during the period and the associated expenditure are shewn under Restricted Funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Income for the year exceeded expenditure by £37,129,000 (2023: £344,000} after providing for
depreciation totaling £2,111,000 (2023: £1,100,000). The surplus generated before providing for
depreciation and loss on disposal of fixed assets was £39,240,000 (2023: £1,444,000),
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Whilst the fixed costs of the Academy Trust staffing, building maintenance and IT maintenance represent
the majority of the Academy Trusts expenditure, we have also continued to invest in providing the best
resources for our students to ensure that they continue to receive the very best education including
accommodation improvements and ICT investment.

At 31 August 2024 the net book value of fixed assets was £64,612,000 (2023: £32,697,000) and
movement In tangible assets are shown in note 12 to the financial statements. This significant increase is
due to the increase from 4 schools to 9 within the academic year.

The Academy Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2024 of £69,475,000 (2023: £35,244,000) comprising
£65,433,000 (2023: £32,697,000) of restricted fixed asset funds, £2,193,000 {2023: £1,810,000),
restricted endowment fund of £1,061,000 (2023:n/a), restricted general funds and £3,561,000 (2022:
£1,378,000) of unrestricted funds, offset by a pension scheme liability totaling £2,773,000 (2023:
£641,000).

The pension movement does not have an immediate cash flow impact following the triennial review the
small Increase within employee contributions rates were within forecasted budget s¢ no impact on
revenue.

The pension values as at 31 August 2024 have been determined by the actuary which is showing the
following pension assets and liabllities within the academy trust as at the balance sheet date:

The Academy of St Nicholas — pension liability of £1,431,000

The Academy of St Francis of Assisi -~ pension asset of £445,000

Faith Primary Academy - pension asset of £449,000

St Margaret's Church of England Academy - pension liability of £685,000
Hope Academy - pension liability of £657,000

St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy - pension asset of £471,000
St Teresa of Lisieux Catholic Primary Academy - pension asset of £589,000
St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy - pension asset of £431,000

In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the asset values in The Academy of St Francis of
Assisi, Faith Primary Academy, St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy, St Teresa of Lisieux
Catholic Primary Academy and St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy have been capped at an
asset ceiling value of £nil on the basis that the asset is not deemed to be realisable.

The trust is continually enhancing its financial standing, with ongoing initiatives aimed at increasing
student enrollment across all phases, particularly focusing on Early Years and 16-19 provision, A
procurement and contracts officer has been appointed to review all contracts and standardize procurement
processes throughout the trust, resulting in cost-benefit realizations. Additionally, the trust has
implemented integrated financial planning to ensure the effective utilization of resources, thereby
demonstrating value for money and improving outcomes for all students. Fund balances are sufficient to
meet the obligations of the Academy Trust and enable investments in building maintenance and
accommodation improvements. This approach also provides a safeguard against most unforeseen future
events, such as inflatiocn-induced price risks.

The Trust has a cash balance of £7,901,000 {2023: £4,876,000), the movement in year belng the increase
in the number of schools plus the cash generated from operations less fixed asset expenditure. Based
upon the cash balance as at 31 August 2024 the trust has sufficient cash reserves to meet its liabilities as
they fall due.

Reserves policy

The reserve policy of the Trust is to carry forward a prudent |evel of revenue reserves designed to meet its
short-term cash flow needs, whilst also managing the longer-term cyclical needs of planning, and any
caplital investment that may be required. The policy is subject to the constraint that the level of reserves
does not exceed the level permitted by the ESFA within the Academies Trust Handbook; currently there are
no limits imposed by the ESFA.

-10 -
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Investment policy

The Academy Trust is firmly committed to ensuring that all funds under its control are administered in such
a way as to maximise returns while minimising risk. Directors do not consider the investment of surplus
funds as a primary activity, but rather a requirement for the effective management of funds.

Following the transfer of Hope Academy into the trust, the former trustees held an Endowment Fund as a
fund separate from all other funds held by the Academy under the name, “The Newton Academy
Endowment Trust”.

The Academy, acting in accordance with its usual procedures, shall be the Trustee of the Endowment Fund,
which resulted in the endowment fund being transferred to The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of
England Academies Trust.

The investment objectives of the Endowment Fund are:

. To achieve an overall rate of return that will ensure an income is generated to allow the Trustee to
meet the trusts declared in section 3 of the Deed of Gift. In normal circumstances the Trustee
would like to achieve a return of income of at least 2% of the capital investment held.

« Investment returns are maximised at an acceptable level of risk and

« The Fund endeavors to always hold an amount at least as great as the Principal Sum as defined in
the Deed, except in such circumstances as the Deed permits. (In the event of the portfolio value
falling below the principal value of the fund then the Trustee would look at the possibility of
transferring funds from any cumulative revenue reserves to ensure future income generation,}

The funds are invested for the long term, 104+ years

Directors’ management of cash flow should ensure that there are always sufficient funds in the main bank
accounts to cover operational costs. The Academy Trust will seek to ensure that any cash not required for
operating expenses is placed in the relevant saving deposit account.

Where significant funds have been accumulated that are not required in the short term for operational
expenses, or as part of a planned surplus for a specific project, Directors may consider the investment of
these funds to generate a longer-term income or capital fund. The approval of the full trust board is
required before any investment is made.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Academy Trust, Not all the
factors are within the Academy Trusts conkrol. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely
affect the Academy Trust.

. Financial uncertainty with regard to the impact of future Government funding reforms including the
roll out of the national funding formula.

« Potential difficulties in reaching capacity in the constituent Academies which will be impacted by a
new all girls free school within Liverpool and falling birth rates currently impacting on the primary
phase moving into secondary phase by 2027/2028.

. Potential difficulties in obtaining capital funding for the final year to ensure the Academy Trust’s
premises continue to meet the needs of its students and ensure it continues to comply with
statutory duties to ensure the health and safety of building occupants.

-11 -
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These risks are mitigated in a number of ways including:

» Ensuring the Academy Trust is rigorous in delivering high quality education and improving
outcomes for pupils.

» A comprehensive marketing/PR program including activities for primary pupils and parents.

« Regular review of pupil numbers which is captured in the monthly financial menitor and reported to
directors.

. Rigorous monitoring of financial activities ensuring value for money and the use of integrated
financial planning to support budget setting.

« Internal control systems and exposure are reviewed on a regular basis.

. Detailed repafr and maintenance program following the commissioning of updated condition
surveys for each of the academies.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

The Directors evaluate the principal risks to which the charitable company is exposed at each trust
meeting, particularly those related to teaching, provision of facilities, and other operational areas of the
Academy Trust, including its finances. The Directors have appointed a governance professional who also
serves as the data controller and GDPR officer. Throughout the year, the trust has reviewed and
implemented various systems to assess risks that the Academy Trust faces, especially in operational areas
(e.g. health and safety) and financial control. They have introduced systems such as operational
procedures, compliance reviews, and internal financial controls to mitigate risk. Where significant financial
risk remains, they have ensured adequate insurance coverage. The Academy Trust maintains an effective
system of internal financial controls, further explained in the following statement.

The Acaderny Trust continues to develop and embed the system of internal control, including financial,
operational and risk management, which is designed to protect the Academy Trust's assets and reputation.

The Trust Senior Leadership Group undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Academy
Trust is exposed. They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which
should mitigate any potentiaf impact on the Academy Trust. The internal controls are then implemented,
and the subsequent year's appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation
actions. In addition to the annual review the Trust Senior Management Team also considers any risks
which may arise as a result of any new area of work being undertaken by the Academy Trust.

A risk register is maintained at the Trust level which is reviewed at each Trust Board meeting and more
frequently by the Finance and Business Committee and Trust Senior Leadership Group. The risk register
identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the Academy Trust
and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritized using a consistent
scoring system. From September 2024 a new Risk and Audit committee has been established.

Fundraising

The core fundraising initiative in place across the multi academy trust was based on the hire of facilities
owned by the trust. The funds generated are in collaboration with a commercial partner who manages the
marketing and staffing of the facilities outside of teaching time for 2 of our schools with a further 2 schools
managed Internally.. Periodic reviews are undertaken with the commercial body to ensure maximum value
for money s being obtained. During the 12 months to August 2024 there were no complaints made
regarding the Trusts fundraising activities.

The Academy Trust tries to protect the public and vulnerable people from unreasonably intrusive or
persistent fundraising approaches by completing full appraisals of any potential fundraising activities
carried out by the academy trust, prior to their commitment.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

2024

Energy consumption kWh

Aggregate of energy consumption In the year 5,998,288

2024

Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emlissions

- Gas combustion 625.67

- Fuel consumed for owned transport 4,75

630.42

Scope 2 - indirect emissions

- Electricity purchased 527.63
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust -

Total gross emissions 1,158.05

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.21

Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2024 UK Government’s Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio Is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil,
the recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency
Total reported emissions rose by 7.46% from the previous reporting year. The Board has now agreed a
sustainability strategy which will be regularly monitored throughout the year.

The trust was successful in their application for decarbonization funding in one of the secondary schools.
Work is currently underway with benefits to be realized at the end of the 24/25 academic year.

The trust installed LED lighting across its academies. The trust engages with a third-party consultant to
improve the energy efficiency of its buildings where possible. This includes enhancing the insulation of the
buildings and updating heating equipment to more energy-efficient systems. Waste is disposed of
responsibly, and materials are recycled whenever possible.
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Plans for future perlods
The main objectives for the coming year are to:

« Develop and Implement trust school improvement framework to improve progress for all students
ensuring the very best quality provision across all schools, all subjects and all key stages through
continuous improvements in the quality of teaching and learning, further refinement of the
curriculum and the development of capacity in school leadership, including within all subjects.

+ Develop a People strategy to embed further a culture of support, and challenge without fear, to
ensure that all people within the Trust are developed, and that appropriate opportunities for
progression exist and are encouraged, resulting in improved retention of staff, and the Trust being
recognised as an employer of cholce. A trust director of people has been appointed (September
24) to support with this strategy

. Welcome new schools into our Trust In line with our growth strategy. Already a primary and
secondary school are planned to transfer into the trust during the 24/25 academic year.

« Develop internal AEP provision, initlally across our secondary phase

« Imbed trust sustainability strategy

« Develop the use of Al across the trust

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others

The Trust holds cash assets on hehalf of LSSP, a Charitable Incorporated Organisation. LSSP delivers sports
services to schools across Liverpool. The Trust performs administrative duties for LSSP as a nominated
lead school, All records are processed independently to those of the Trust in order to ensure adequate
segregation of funds,

Auditor

In so far as the directors are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

DIH Audit Limited has indicated its willingness to continue in office.

The directors' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of directors, as
the company directors, on 18 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs A Ho%
Chair of the Trust Board
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Scope of responsibility

As directors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Liverpool Joint Catholic
And Church Of England Academies Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and
otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absclute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As directors, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance,

The board of directoers has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in
the funding agreement between The Liverpoo! Joint Catholic And Church Of England Academies Trust and
the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting to the board of
directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Directors’ Report and in
the Statement of Directers' Responsibilities. The board of directors has formally met 4 times during the
year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of directors was as follows:

Directors Meetings attended QOut of possible

Mrs E Akinyande

Mr S Crowe (appointed Sept 2023)
Mrs L Cody (appointed Mar 2024)

Mrs T Lewyckyi (appointed June 2024)

Mr M Elliot {Chair of the Trust Board) 3 4
Rev S Haynes 3 4
Mrs ] Griffiths 2 4
Mrs A Holden 4 4
Miss E Rees 3 4
Mr P Cronin 3 4
Mrs S Cronin 4 4
3 4
3 4
2 2
1 1

The Board met 4 times last year but assurance is also sought through the Finance and business committee
which meets up to 6 times per year. All key documentation, reports and minutes are shared to all Directors
electronically in advance and in line with trust scheme of delegation via Governor Hub ensuring efficient
oversight and contact with all Directors. In addition to the Trust Board an annual Directors away day was
held on 19th June with full attendance.

During the academic year and in line with the growth strategy governance was a priority area for review,
This review led to key changes in the composition of the board, increasing the membership from 8 to 11
based on the needs of a growing trust. The appointment of the governance professional has been a key
appointment who has reviewed the board’s performance, including assessment of its own effectiveness
and identification of any challenges. This has led to a review of the committee structure for 2024/2025
academic year.
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Conflicts of interest

In accordance with the governance framework and statutory requirements Liverpool Joint Catholic and
Church of England academies trust takes all reasonable steps to identify and manage potential conflicts of
interest, We are committed to ensuring transparency in all our financial and operational activities.

During the reporting period, the following steps were taken to mitigate conflicts of interest:

1. Declaration of Interests: All directors, members, and senior staff are required to complete and
annually update a declaration of interest form, disclosing any financial interests, relationships, or
other personai interests that may potentially conflict with the duties of the Trust.

2. Minutes of Meetings: A register of interests is maintained and reviewed regularly. In any
meeting where potential conflicts may arise, relevant individuals are required to declare these
interests at the outset, and where necessary, they may be asked to recuse themselves from the
decision-making process.

3. Review Procedures: The Trust Board regularly reviews its conflict of interest policies to ensure
they remain up-to-date and in line with best practices. Any incidents or potential conflicts of
interest are addressed promptly by the Trust Board, and actions are taken in line with the Trust’s
conflict of interest policy.

4. Compliance with Legislation and Best Practice: The Trust adheres to all applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements relating to conflicks of interest, including the Department for
Education (DfE) guidance for MATs, and any other relevant external guidance.

The Trust confirms that to the best of its knowledge, all conflicts of interest have been identified and
properly managed In accordance with the procedures outlined above,

Governance reviews

The directors commissioned an external review of governance, which was completed in October 2023, The
findings were shared with the board of directors, and an action plan was developed to address the report's
recommendations. The key recommendation to appoint a governance professional was Implemented in
January 2024. The primary role of the governance professional Is to regularly evaluate the board's
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

The Finance and Business Committee {whose remit covers Audit compliance) is a sub-committee of the
Trust Beard. Its purpose is:

- monitoring the integrity of the financial statements;

. reviewing internal financial controls and reviewing the company’s internal control and risk
management systems;

» monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control reviews, which are undertaken
by a third-party provider;

» making recommendations to the board in relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the auditor;
and

» reviewing the auditor’s independence and objectivity.

The Finance and Business Committee met 6 times during the last academic year, ensuring effective
oversight of funds alongside monthly financial reports being shared with all Directors via governor hub,

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
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Directors Meetings attended Out of possible

Mr M Elliot {Chair of Trust Board) 4 6
Rev S Haynes (Chair of Finance and Business Committee) 6 6
Mr P Cronin 6 6
Mrs E Akinyande 5 6
Mr S Crowe 3 3

Education and Standards Committee

The Education & Standards Committee is to maintain full oversight of:

- The monitoring and evaluation of pupil progress and attainment, and the quality of teaching.

. Ensuring the Trust provides a consistently high-quality learning experience, and delivers a broad
and balanced curriculum in keeping with the trust's aims and vision

« All pupil needs and legal requirements.

The Education & Standards Committee is a sub - committee of the Board and is authorised to

investigate any activity either within its terms of reference, or specifically delegated to it by the

board.

The committee meets termly. Attendance at meetings in the year was as foliows:

Directors Meetings attended Out of possible
Mr Matt Elliot i 3
Mrs ) Griffiths {Chair) 2 3
Mr E Boyes (Co-opted ASN LGB) 2 3
Sue Cronin 3 3
Linda Coady (appointed March 2024} 1 1

Renumeration committee

The Renumeration Committee is responsible for monitoring and implementing the Trust’s Pay Policy with
fully delegated powers from the Trust Board.

The committee meets bi-annually. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Directors Meetings attended Out of possible
Mrs A Holden (Chair) 2 2
Rev Stuart Hayes 2 2
Mr M Elliot 2 2

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management,
achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of directors where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate, The
accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

« Appointment of a procurement and contracts officer.

. Completing and implementing integrated financial planning to ensure that the level of investment
in each subject area is in proportion to the number of students studying the subject.

« Reviewing the value for money obtained from all non-core expenditure including, for example,
service level agreements, administration costs and changing purchasing practices accordingly.

+ Utilising the opportunities for economies of scale offered by the Trust arrangement to reduce costs
e.g. reviewed print solution across the trust,

« Procured an energy review of all the schools within the trust to support the trust sustainability
strategy

« Alignment of financial processes delivering on efficiencies.

« Investment into CCTV which will in time support improvement in student behaviours - reducing
suspensions and permanent exclusions, improve staff wellbeing reducing sickness absence and
finally reducing the financial burden of vandalism.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal contre! is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and tha Impact should they be realised,
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of Internal control has been in
place in The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England Academies Trust for the period 1 September
2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

The trust has approved in line with the Academy Trust Handbook and the ESFA's internal scrutiny good
practice guide a detailed schedule reviewing both financial and non-financial areas on a regular basis. All
reviews are undertaken by the third-party provider.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of directors has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
board of directors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2023 to
31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts, This process is regularly
reviewed by the board of directors.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management
Information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors;

. regular reviews by the Trust Board and the Finance and Business Committee of reports which indicate

financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and

expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

identification and management of risks.
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The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to
appoint HBD Accountancy Services LLP as an internal auditor.

The auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust’s financial systems. The auditor reports to the Board of Directors on the operatlon of the
systems of contrel and on the discharge of the Board of Directors’ financial responsibilities. There have
been no material control issues arising as a result of the auditor’'s work during the year. The schedule of
audit work has been completed as planned for the year.

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

+ the work of the internal auditor;

« the work of the external auditor;

. the financial management and governance school resource management self-assessment tool; and

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framewaork.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the finance and business committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous iImprovement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the finance and business committee and the accounting officer, the board of
directors is of the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for
governance, risk management and contrel.

Approved by order of the board of directors on 18 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

.....................................................

Mrs H Duggan "Mrs A Holden
CEOQO & Accounting Officer Chair of the Trust Board
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As accounting officer of The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust, I have
considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of directors and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) of materlal irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions
of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement in place
between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education, As part of my consideration I have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for
estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the academy trust's board of directors are able to identify any material irregular or
Improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to
the hoard of directors and ESFA.

...................................

Mrs H Duggan
Accounting Officer

Date: 18 December 2024
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The directors (who also act as trustees for The Liverpool oint Catholic and Church of England Academies
Trust) are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the accounts in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable
faw and regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the
directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that peried.

In preparing these accounts, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024,

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

. prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is Inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which confoerm with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants recelved from ESFA/DFE have been
applied for the purposes intended.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included en the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 18 December 2024 and signed on its behalf
by:

Mrs A Holden
Chair ofthe Trust Board
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Independent auditor's report

To the members of The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

For the year ended 31 August 2024

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust for
the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the
statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including significant accounting pelicies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applled in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financlal Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the
Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year
then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy
trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financia! statements, we have concluded that the directers' use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast signiflcant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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To the members of The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
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For the year ended 31 August 2024

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinlon on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we Identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement
in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repart that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the directors' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial
year for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

» the directors’ report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report, including the
incorporated strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the directors are
responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as
applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs {UK)} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.
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The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed

below.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities,
including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with
regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather
than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the charitable company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

Identify and test journal entries, in particular any journal entries posting with unusual account
cambinations.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the charitable company’s abiiity to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
charitable company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation (ie. gives a true and fair view).

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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To the members of The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

For the year ended 31 August 2024

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Candice Beynon FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of DJH Audit Limited
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Bridge House

Ashley Road

Hale

Altrincham

WA14 2UT

------------------
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Independent reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity

To The Liverpoo! Joint Catholic And Church Of England Academies Trust
and The Education and Skills Funding Agency

For the year ended 31 August 2024

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 October 2023 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carrfed out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England
Academies Trust during the petiod 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report Is made solely to The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust and ESFA
in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the The Liverpool JoInt Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone other than The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of
England Academies Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies
Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer Is responsible, under the requirements of The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of
England Academies Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 14 August
2015 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and
the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything
has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have
not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Gulde for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement
as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information
and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence te express a negative
conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a
positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety
of the academy trust's income and expenditure.
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Independent reporting accountant's assurance report on regularity
(continued)

To The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England Academies Trust
and The Education and Skills Funding Agency

For the year ended 31 August 2024

The work undertaken to draw to our concluslon includes:

We have confirmed that the activities conform to the academy trust's framework of authorities. As
identified by review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and
other key management personnel.

We have carried out an analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities of
the academy trust are within the academy trust’s framework of authorities.

We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer’s statement on regularity, propriety
and compliance and have evaluated the general control environment of the academy trust and
extended the procedures required for financial statements to include regularity.

We have assessed and tested a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular
activity. In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the activity is
permissible within the academy trust’s framework of authorities. We confirm that each item tested has
been appropriately authorised in accordance with the academy trust’s delegated authorities and that
the internal delegations have been approved by the governing body, and conform to the limits set by
the Department for Education.

Formal representations have been obtained from the governing body and the accounting officer
acknowledging their responsibilities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and regulations
specific to the authorising framework, access to accounting records, provision of information and
explanations, and other matters where direct evidence Is not available.

In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant funding
within the funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered whether
supplies are from related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of interest,
and whether or not there was involvement in the decision to order from this supplier.

We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted within
the academy trust’s charitable objects.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024
has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern them,

DJH Audit Limited
Reporting Accountant

Dated: lg{”'h"{—
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England

Academies Trust

Statement of financial activities (continued)
including income and expenditure account

For the year ended 31 August 2024

Comparative year information Unrestricted

Year ended 31 August 2023 funds
Notes £'000

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 -

Donations - transfer from local authority on

conversion 30 172

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations 4 -

Other trading activities 5 508

Investments 6 2

Total 682

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 7 18
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9 -
Total 7 18
Net income/ (expenditure) 664
Transfers between funds 20 -

Other recognised gains/{losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
schemes 22 -

Net movement in funds 664

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 714

Total funds carried forward 1,378

Restricted funds: Total
General Fixed asset 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000
31 609 640
344 - 516
16,715 - 16,715
- - 508

- - 2
17,090 609 18,381
- - 18
16,919 1,100 18,019
16,919 1,100 18,037
171 (491) 344
280 (280) -
2,185 - 2,185
2,636 (771) 2,529
{1,467) 33,468 32,715
1,169 32,697 35,244
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Balance sheet
As at 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 64,612 32,697
Investments 14 1,061 -
65,673 32,697
Current assets
Stock 15 36 -
Debtors 16 2,683 844
Cash at bank and in hand 7,901 4,876
10,620 5,720
Current {iabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 17 (3,960) {2,442)
Net current assets 6,660 3,278
Total assets less current liabilities 72,333 35,975
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 18 (85) (90)
Net assets excluding pension liability 72,248 35,885
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 22 (2,773) (641)
Total net assets 69,475 35,244
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds 20
- Fixed asset funds 65,433 32,697
- Restricted income funds 2,193 1,810
- Pension reserve (2,773) (641)
- Endowment funds 1,061 -
Total restricted funds 65,914 33,866
Unrestricted income funds 20 3,561 1,378
Total funds 69,475 35,244

The accounts were approved by the directors and authorised for issue on 18 December 2024 and are
signed on their behalf by:

Chair of the Trust Board
Company registration number 07007398 (England and Wales)
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England

Academies Trust

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 August 2024

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 23
Cash funds transferred on conversion 30

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from
investments

Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and
others

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term bank loan

Finance costs
Endowment fund income

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in
the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Refating to:

Bank and cash balances
Short term deposits

2024
£'000 £'000
870
1,976
2,846
53
922
807
(1,605)
(174)
177
180
(26)
25
{1)
3,025
4,876
7,901
5,380
2,521

2023
£'000 £'000
680
344
1,024
2
547
62
(329)
282
(24}
(1)
(25)
1,281
3,595
4,876
4,376




The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 August 2024

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies

The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust is a charitable company. The
address of its principal place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set
out in the directors' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the charitable company to continue as a geing concern. The directors make this assessment in
respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Thus they centinue Lo adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the accounts.

Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school to an academy trust involved the transfer of
identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The substance
of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from St Cleopas' Church of England Primary
School, St Mary's Catholic Infant School, St Mary's Primary Junior School and St Teresa of Lisieux
Catholic Primary Schoo! to the academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has
been derived based on that of equivalent items., The amounts have been recognised under the
appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in Donations -
transfer from local authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed
under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds. Further details of
the transaction are set out in note 30,

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are Included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
Fer the year ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policles {Continued)

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for
which it is receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capita! grants are refiected In the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there Is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided te the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other incame
Other incomne, Including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it Is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading
activities’, Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they
are not recognised in the accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from
other trading activities”.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in
which case the cost of the item to the donor is used, The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust’'s accounting policies.

Transfer of assets from existing academies

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy
trust, the transferred net assets are measured at falr value and recognised in the balance sheet at
the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. Income equal to the
net assets transferred is recognised within donations and capital grant income,
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

15

1.6

Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it Is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to
more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are
apportionad between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff
costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion
of the asset’s use,

All resources expended are inciusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impalrment,

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
that require the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the statement of financial activities and carrled forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2%

Assets under constructicn Nil until brought into use
Plant and machinery 15%

Computer equipment 25% or 33%

Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10% or 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit wili be required in settlement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods of services it must provide,

1.8 Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.9 Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at market value.

1.10 Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

financial liabitities

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure
definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken
place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.11 Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete
and slow moving stock.

1.12 Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes. Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010
or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes,

1.13 Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS'} and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit
schermes and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust In separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assels are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methed and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennlally and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income or
expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlernents and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scherne assets and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised in other recognised gains
and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately In other recognised gains and
losses.

1.14 Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the directors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

2  Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement {Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of facters that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, will impact on the carrying amount of
the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward
approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

funds funds funds 2024 2023

£000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £'000

RPA Insurance claim income - 1 - 1 13
Capital grants - 1,729 - 1,728 547
Other donations i - - i 80
Endowments - - 25 25 -
1 1,730 25 1,756 640
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England

Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 August 2024

4  Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant {GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants:
- UIFSM

- Pupil premium

- Start up grants

- Supplementary grant
- Teachers pay grant

- Teachers pension grant

- SAFE Taskforce
- MSAG funding

- 16 - 19 Education Funding

- Others
Other DfE group grants

Other government grants

Local authority grants

Total funding

Unrestricted
funds
£'000

T O O

Restricted
funds
£'000

27,823

60
2,050
190

533
414
1,416
930
2,572
594

36,582

1,432

38,014

Total
2024
£'000

27,823

60
2,050
190

533
414
1,416
930
2,572
594

36,582

1,432

38,014

Total
2023
£'000

11,829

1,117

460

35
816

1,269
8ig

16,387

328

16,715

The academy trust received £1,432,000 from the local authority in the year, comptising of High
Needs funding of £680,000 (2023 £216,000), early years funding of £128,000 (2023: £30,000),
free school meals £16,000 (2023: £nil), Afghan resettiement grants £258,000 (2023: £nil) and other

grants of £350,000 (2023: £82,000).

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in respect of government grant funding.

5 Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Parental contributions
Other income

Unrestricted
funds
£'000

84
742
270
215

1,311

Restricted
funds
£'000

Total
2024
£'000

84
742
270
215

1,311

Total
2023
£'000

48
163
108
185

508
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The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 August 2024

6

Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds 2023
£'000 £'000 E'000
Short term deposits 53 - 53
Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure on raising funds
~ Direct costs - - 74 74
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 21,116 1,794 3,537 26,447
- Allocated support costs 6,715 3,254 3,385 13,354
27,831 5,048 6,996 39,875
Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes: 2024
E£'000
Operating lease rentals 183
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,111
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 37
- Other services 4
Bank and loan interest -
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 62

Central services

Total
2023
£000

™~

Total
2023
£'000

18

11,488
6,531

18,037

2023
£'000

34
1,100

14

105

MNo central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the year and no
central charges arose. The academy trust pooled its GAG resources from 1 September 2021 and as
such all central costs incurred by the trust were covered by these funds,
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9 Charitable activities

Unrestricted

Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs
Educational operations

Analysis of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational suppert staff costs
Staff development

Depreciation

Technology costs

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees

Other direct costs

Support costs

Support staff costs

Depreciation

Technology costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Finance costs

Legal costs

Other support costs

Governance costs

funds
£'000

Restricted
funds
£'000

26,447

13,348

Total
2024
£'000

26,447

13,354

39,795

39,801

2024
£'000

21,156
68
1,794
193
1,836
494
206

26,447

6,778

872
285
594
918
323
106

41
209

62
810
607

13,354

Total
2023
£'000

11,488

6,531

18,019

2023
£'000

8,685
31
944

1,211
215

11,488

3,033
156
285
845
359
446
116

12
27
372
106
501
272

6,531
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10 Staff

Staff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 19,422 8,231
Social security costs 2,107 884
Pension costs 4,259 1,746
Staff costs - employees 25,788 10,861
Agency staff costs 2,013 826
Staff restructuring costs 30 6
27,831 11,693
Staff development and other staff costs 171 56
Total staff expenditure 28,002 11,749
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 18 -
Severance payments 12 6
30 6

Severance payments
The academy trust paid 1 severance payments in the year, disctosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000 1

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2024 2023

Number Number

Teachers 230 110
Administration and support 241 112
Management 8 6
479 228
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10 Staff (Continued)
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:
2024 2023
Number Number
Teachers 221 108
Administration and support 182 91
Management 8 6
411 205
Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:
2024 2023
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 33 2
£70,001 - £80,000 6 3
£80,001 - £90,000 5 2
£90,001 - £100,000 4 -
£100,001 - £110,000 1 1
£110,001 - £120,000 2 -
£120,001 - £130,000 - 1
£140,001 - £150,000 1 -
Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the directors and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel employee
benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions)
received by key rmanagement personnel for their services to the academy trust was £1,309,000
(2023: £1,085,000).
11 Directors’' remuneration and expenses
Mo trustees are employed by the trust and as such no remuneration has been paid to the trustees in
the year (2023: £nil).
During the year no expenses were reimbursed to trustees (2023: £nil).
12 Directors’ and officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted inte the Department for Education's Risk Protection Arrangement
{RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover |osses that arise, This scheme
protects directors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring
whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to
quantify the directors and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

- 43 -



I.v.VI

£69'2¢ - 76 9z9 - - 626°'1€ £207 3snbny 1¢ 2y

Z19'v% L Z10°2Z £08 88 85/ +v6'09 #2072 1IBNbnY 1€ 1y
INjeA Yoo 19N

SLT'6T z1 695°2 £26°1 SE¥'s - TFTLT ¥T0z 3snbny 1¢ 1y
1112 £ €61 zov 61 - PEP'T 1e3A 3L} Jo) abueyn
ZOT'61 6 087'C 9p0°'T 90v's - 169¢°8 Buiujof jooyds Jo seysues)
z90's - 96T 6IY - - LYbL £20¢ laquldas Ty

uonemasdaqg

LB88'E6 61 185'% 0L’z £15°2 |84 981’87 $202 ¥snbny 1€ W
S09°T - S6v Fasty) - 854 - SUONIPpPY
£TS'1S 61 868°¢ EEE'T €IS°L - 09288 Buulol [poyss Jo Jajsuel)
652°0% - 882 SHO'T - - 97 6E £Z0z Joquaides T v
50D
000.3 000.7 000.7 000,73 000,F 000.F 000.F
Juswdinbsa uononasuel sbuippng
SIOIYIA ® sbumyy juswdinbe AlRBunoew  Jspun pue puegt
|1ejol 10101 ‘SIINXI Jaandwon pue ueld s)assy ployasean

sjosse paxy) s|qibue] €1

207 Isnbny TE papud Je3ah ayj 404
{(pPnuijuod) sUBWIIELS [RIDURULY 9T 0] S310N

ISndL saiuapedy puejbuz Jo Yo4ny) puy sjoyie) julor [00dIaAI] YL



The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

13

14

Tangible fixed assets {Continued)

The net book value of land and buildings comprises:

2024 2023
£000 £'000
lLong leaseholds {(over 50 years) 60,944 31,979

The academy trust holds title to the land on which St Francis of Assisi stands. The land was
transferred from Liverpool City Council and is subject to a covenant relating to use.

The land occupied at $t Nicholas' is held by Liverpool City Council, no register of a lease has been
declared with land registry.

The land occupied at Falth Primary is a licence to occupy with no lease declared with land registry.

The Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance owns the land and buildings from which St Margaret's
Church of England Academy operates. An agreement has been entered into with the diocese,
whereby the diocese has agreed to make the land and buildings available on a long term lease. The
terms of the agreement transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the land and buildings to
the academy trust and consequently the assets are recognised as a fixed asset. Included in the land
and buildings is land at deemed cost of £2,636,440 which is depreciated over the 125 year lease.

Fixed asset investments

Fixed interest Equity Other Cash Total
investments investments
£'000 £'000 E'Q00 £'000 £'000

Market value
Transferred in on 1 October
2023 221 580 122 29 952
Disposals at opening book
value - {160) (8} - (168)
Acquisitions at cost - 174 - - 174
Change in value in the year 11 93 10 (11} 103
At 31 August 2024 232 687 124 18 1,061
Historical cost:
At 31 August 2024 230 585 122 18 955

At 31 August 2023 - - - “

|

Portfolio valuation

Prices for quoted securities are usually mid-market closing prices provided by the lLondon Stock
Exchange (or any other equivalent investment exchanges where relevant). Unit trusts and collective
investments usually show mid-market prices at the last valuation point prior to the period end.
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15 Stock

Stock of uniforms

16 Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Government loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and sacial security
ESFA creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Government loans

2024
£'000

36

2024
£'000

100
481

2,099

2,683

2024
£'000

32
1,292
550
82
935
1,069

3,960

2024
£'000

2023
£'000

2023
£'000

217
319

308

844

2023
£'000

22
534
97
117
508
1,164

2,442

2023
£'000
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Analysis of loans

Not wholly repayable within five years by instalments
Wholly repayable within five years

Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

Instaiments not due within five years

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less

Due in more than one year but not more than two years

Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in more than five years

The loans above are as follows:

2024
£'000

22
a5

117
(32)

85

|

22

32
26
37
22

117

{Continued)

2023
£'000

28
84

112
(22)

90

28

22
22
40
28

112

CIF loan totaling £66,675 at year end. This has an interest rate of 1.95% and is repayable in
instalments over 10 years. The final payment date is expected to be August 2031.

ESFA financial assistance loan totaling £26,200 at year end. There is no interest charged on this loan
which is repayable in instalments. The final payment date is expected to be August 2026.

St Margaret's Church of England Academy has 2 loans from Salix Finance Ltd and are interest free.
Cne loan was taken out in 2019 and is repayable over 10 instalments and the balance at 31 August
2024 was £6,600. This was completely repaid on 1 September 2024, The second loan was takenh out
in 2022 and repayable over 16 instalments, paid twice per year. The balance at 31 August 2024 is

£17,813 and is due to be completely repaid on 1 September 2029,
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19 Deferred income

2024

£'000
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year 132
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 158
Released from previous years (158)
Resources deferred in the year 132
Deferred Income at 31 August 2024 132

2023
£'000

At the balance sheet date deferred income consists of £77,000 of UIFSM (2023: £11,000) and

various other grants totalling £55,000 (2023: £147,000).
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20 Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start up grants

UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
16-19 Education Funding
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

inherited on conversion
DfE group capital grants

Capital expenditure from
GAG

Private sector capital

sponsorship

Restricted endowment fund

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds

General funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 September
2023 Incame
£'000 £'000
1,810 28,832
- 190
- 60
- 2,050
- 3,887
- 1,432
- 2,572
- 1
{641} 43%
1,169 35,463
- 27,030
14,524 6,833
82 311
18,091 43
32,697 34,217
- 977
33,866 74,657
1,378 2,233
35,244 76,890

Expenditure
£'000

(27,819)
(190)
(60}
{2,050)
(3,887)
{1,432)
{2,572)
(1)

327

{37,684}

(666)
(557)

(120)

(768)

(2,111}

|

(39,7585)

(80)

(39,875)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£'000

(630)

{2,898)

(3,528)

630

630

84

(2,814)

30

(2,784)

Balance at
31 August
2024
£'000

2,193

(2,773)

(580)

26,364
20,800

903

17,366

65,433

1,061

65,914

3,561

69,475
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20 Funds {Continued}

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds are those resources that have been designated restricted by the grant
provider in meeting the objects of the academy and are restricted to both the day to day running of
the academy and capital expenditure.

The pension values as at 31 August 2024 have been determined by the actuary which is showing the
following pansion assets and liabilities within the academy trust as at the balance sheet date:

The Academy of St Nicholas - pension lability of £1,431,000

The Academy of St Francis of Assisi - pension asset of £445,000

Faith Primary Academy - pension asset of £449,000

St Margaret's Church of England Academy - pension liability of £685,000
Hope Academy ~ pension liability of £657,000

St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy - pension asset of £471,000
St Teresa of Lisieux Catholic Primary Academy — pension asset of £589,000
St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy - pension asset of £431,000

In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the asset values in The Academy of St Francis of
Assisi, Faith Primary Academy, St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy, 5t Teresa of Lisieux
Catholic Primary Academy and St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy have been capped at
an asset ceiling value of £nil on the basis that the asset is not deemed to be realisable,

Restricted fixed asset funds are those funds relating to the long term assets of the academy used in
delivering the objects of the academy. The restricted fixed asset fund represents the net book value
of fixed assets of £64,612,000, unspent capital grant transferred in of £67,000, unspent PSDS of
£409,000, unspent DFC of £17,000 and unspent CIF of £328,000.

Unrestricted funds are funds which the board of trustees may use in the pursvance of the academy's
objects and are expendable at the discretion of the trustees.

The transfer of £630,000 from restricted GAG funds to restricted fixed asset funds is to meet the cost
of fixed asset additions for which there was no specific capital funding in the year,

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a
limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024,
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20 Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at
1 September
2022 Income

£'000 £'000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,617 11,829
UIFSM - 6
Pupil premium - 1,117
Cther DFE/ESFA grants - 2,159
Other government grants - 328
16-19 Education Funding - 460
SAFE Taskforce - 816
Other restricted funds - 31
Pension reserve {3,084) 344

(1,467) 17,090
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants 14,515 547
Capital expenditure from
GAG 99 -
Private sector capital
sponsorship 18,854 62

33,468 609
Total restricted funds 32,001 17,699
Unrestricted funds
General funds 714 682
Total funds 32,715 18,381

Expenditure
£'000

(11,916)
(6)
(1,117)
(2,159)
{328)
(460)
(816)
(31}
(86)

(16,919)

(222)
(115)

(763)

(1,100)

{(18,019)

{18)

(18,037)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£'000

280

2,185

2,465

(316)

(62)

(280)

2,185

)
-
o
L ]

’

{Continued}

Balance at
31 August
2023
£'000

1,810

(641)

1,189

14,524

18,091

32,697

33,866

1,378

35,244
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20 Funds

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

The Academy of St Nicholas

The Academy of St Francis of Assisi

Faith Primary Academy

St Mary's Catholic Infant Academy

St Mary's Catholic Junior Academy

St Teresa of Lisieux Catholic Primary

St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy
Hope Academy

St Margaret's Church of England Academy
Central services

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds

2024
£'000

6,815

65,433
(2,773)

69,475

(Continued)

2023
£'000

3,188

32,607
(641)

35,244

From 1 September 2021, the academy trust has pooled its GAG resources. All funds are held
centrally and not in individual schools, hence a breakdown by academy is not included in these

accounts,
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20

21

Funds

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

The Academy of St
Nicholas

The Academy of St
Francis of Assisi

Faith Primary Academy
St Mary's Catholic Infant
Academy

St Mary's Catholic Junior
Academy

St Teresa of Lisieux
Catholic Primary

St Cleopas' Church of
England Primary
Academy

Hope Academy

St Margaret's Church of
England Academy

Central services

Teaching and

Other costs

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31
August 2024 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Fixed asset investments
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

(Continued)

educational Other support  Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
4,212 836 149 209 6,106 6,500
4,421 830 292 592 6,135 6,386
848 447 119 219 1,633 1,353
288 67 g 88 452 -
472 48 25 101 646 -
870 251 75 127 1,323 -
462 a3 16 73 644 -
5,209 950 282 1,482 7,923 -
4,353 1,221 185 1,140 6,899 -
21 2,035 684 3,263 6,003 2,454
21,156 6,778 1,836 7,994 37,764 16,693
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds

£°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

- - 64,612 - 64,612

- - - 1,061 1,061

3,561 6,238 821 - 10,620
- {3,960} - - (3,960)
- (85) - - (85)
- (2,773) - - {2,773)

3,561 {580) 65,433 1,061 69,475
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21

22

Analysis of net assets between funds {Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Endowment Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fund balances at 31

August 2023 are

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 32,697 - 32,697

Current assets 1,378 4,342 - - 5,720

Current liabilities - (2,442) - - (2,442)

Non-current liabilities - [:10)] - - {90)

Pension scheme liability - (641) - - (641)

Total net assets 1,378 1,169 32,697 - 35,244

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wirral Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the
LGPS related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £625,000 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023:
£149,000) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers’ Penslon Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers' Pensicn Scheme Regulations 2014. Membershlp is automatic for teachers in
academy trusts, All teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.,

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.
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22 Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31
March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October
2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above
the rate of CPI, The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

» Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% cof pensionable pay (including a 0.08%
administration levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control
result is such that no change in member benefits is needed.

. Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service ta the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated
future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£222,200 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation was implemanted from 1 April 2024, The next valuation result is due to
be implemented from 1 April 2028,

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the peried amounted to £3,288,000 (2023:
£986,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted
for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has
set out above the information available on the scheme,

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for
future years are 16.9% - 21.1% for employers and 5.5% - 12.5% for employees.

As described in note 30 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, being the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
joined the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the academy trust
at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July
2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a
parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.
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22

Pension and similar obligations
Total contributions made 2024
£'000
Employer's contributions 1,380
Employees' contributions 364
Total contributions 1,724
Principal actuarial assumptions 2024
%o
Rate of increase in salaries 4.1
Rate of increase for pensfons in payment/inflation 2.7
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 49 -5.0

(Continued)

2023
£'000

583
162

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future Improvements in mortality

rates, The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are;

2024
Years
Retiring today
- Males 20.8
- Females 234
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 22.0
- Females 25.1

Sensitivity analysis
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

The Academy of St Nicholas 2024
Discount rate + 0.1% . {108)
Discount rate - 0.1% 109
Mortality assumption + 1 year 158
Mortality assumption - 1 year (155)
CPI rate + 0.1% 109
CPI rate - 0.1% (108)

2023
Years

20.8
23.3

22.1
25.1

2023

(98)
99
141

(138)
99

{96)
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22 Pension and similar obligations
The Academy of St Francis of Assisi

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPI rate + 0.1%

CPl rate - 0.1%

Faith Primary Academy

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPIrate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

St Margaret's CE Academy

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

Hope Academy

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CFPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

2024

{21)
22
24

(24)
22

{21)

2024

(64)
65
24

(92)
65

(64)

2024

(106)
108
142

{139)
108

(106)

{Continued)

2023

(84)
85
100
(98)
85
(83)

2023

(18)
18
20

(20)
18

(18)

2023

2023
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22 Pension and similar obligations
St Mary's Infant and Junior Academles

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPlrate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

St Teresa of Lisieux

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPI rate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

St Cleopas CE Primary Academy

Discount rate + 0.1%
Discount rate - 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
Mortality assumption - 1 year
CPlrate + 0.1%

CPI rate - 0.1%

The academy trust’'s share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Government bonds
Other bonds

Cash

Property

Other assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,037,000 (2023: £263,000).

2024

(20}
20
20

(20
20

(20)

2024

(24)
25
31

(30)
25

(25)

2024

(19)
19
21

(21)
15

(19)

2024
Fair value
£'060

15,108
1,363
482
426
3,209
7,809

28,397

(Continued)

2023

2023

2023

Fatr value
£'000

6,208
592
218
133

1,455

3,321

12,117
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22 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Current service cost 942 551
Interest income (1,193) {494}
Interest cost 1,255 599
Administration expenses 29 i3
Total amount recognised 1,033 669
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2024 2023
£'000 £°000
At 1 September 2023 12,758 13,124
Obligations acquired on conversion or transfer 12,819 992
Current, service cost 942 551
Interest cost 1,255 599
Employee contributions 364 162
Actuarial loss/{gain} 3,742 (2,416)
Benefits paid (710) {254)
At 31 August 2024 31,170 12,758

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

2024 2023

£'000 £°000
At 1 September 2023 12,117 10,040
Assets acquired on conversion or transfer 13,258 1,336
Interest income 1,183 494
Actuarial (gain)/loss 844 (231)
Employer contributions 1,360 583
Employee contributions 364 162
Benefits paid (710) (254}
Effect of non-routine settlements and administration expenses (29) (13)
At 31 August 2024 28,397 12,117

-59.



The Liverpool Joint Catholic And Church Of England
Academies Trust

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2024

22 Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

23

The pension values as at 31 August 2024 have been determined by the actuary which is showing the
following pension assets and liabilities within the academy trust as at the balance sheet date:

The Academy of St Nicholas - pension liability of £1,431,000

The Academy of St Francis of Assisi — pension asset of £445,000

Faith Primary Academy - pension asset of £449,000

St Margaret's Church of England Academy - pension liability of £685,000
Hope Academy - pension liability of £657,000

St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy - pension asset of £471,000
St Teresa of Lisieux Cathelic Primary Academy — pension asset of £589,000
St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy - pension asset of £431,000

In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the asset values in The Academy of St Francis of
Assisi, Faith Primary Academy, St Mary's Catholic Primary and Junior Academy, St Teresa of Lisieux
Catholic Primary Academy and St Cleopas’ Church of England Primary Academy have been capped at
an asset ceiling value of £nil on the basis that the asset is not deemed to be realisable.

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

2024 2023

Notes £'000 £'000
Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities) 37,015 344
Adjusted for:
Net surplus on conversion to academy 30 (1,606) {516)
Net surplus on transfer of academy in the trust 31 {34,150} -
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,729) {609)
Net endowment income (25) -
Investment income receivable 6 {53) (2)
Finance costs payable - 1
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 22 (389) (19)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 22 62 105
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,111 1,100
(Increase) in stocks (36) -
(Increase)/decrease in debtors {(1,838) 59
Increase in creditors 1,508 389
Stocks, debtors and creditors transferred on conversion 30 - (172)
Net cash provided by operating activities 870 680
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24 Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September Cash flows 31 August

2023 2024
£000 £'000 £'000
Cash 4,876 504 5,380
Cash equivalents - 2,521 2,521
4,876 3,025 7,901
Loans falling due within one year (22) (10} (32)
Loans falling due after more than one year {90) 5 (85)
4,764 3,020 7,784

25 Long-term commitments

QOperating leases
At 31 August 2024 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

2024 2023
£000 £'000
Amounts due within cne year 281 28
Amounts due in two and five years 951 79
1,232 107
26 Capital commitments
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 207 -

The academy trust had £907,000 of capital commitments at year-end relating to flat roof projects
and decarbonisation program of works funded by Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme Grant,
Condition Improvement Funds and Reserves,

27 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of directors being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the directors have an interest,

The following related party transactions took place in the financial period:
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27

28

29

Related party transactions {Continued)

Expenditure related party transactions

During the year the academy trust received educational services totaling £37,165 (2023: £12,336)
from the Archdiocese of Liverpool (and companies controlled by the Archdiocese of Liverpool);
£11,900 (2023: £nil) from the Diocese of Liverpool, and £1,160 (2023: £504) from Liverpool
Tuneside Limited, the company of the Archdiocese of Liverpool. These organisations are related to
the Liverpool loint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust by virtue of their role as
sponsors. Payments made in the year relate to support services received by the academy trust from
the sponsors. At the balance sheet date, £6,000 was owed to the Diocese of Liverpool (2023: £nil),
£12,366 to The Archdiocese of Liverpool (2023: £12,366) and £504 to Liverpoc! Tuneside Limited
(2023: £504).

During the year the trust received services totaling £6,042 (2023; £nil) from Liverpool Learning
Partnership of which E Rees (trustee) is the CEQ. At the vear end £nlit {2023: £nil) was outstanding.

In undertaking the above transactions the academy trust has complied with the Academy Trust
Handbook.

Income related party transactions
During the year the trust invoiced Liverpool Learning Partnership {of which E Rees is the CEC) £nil
(2023: £325), of which £nil {2023: £2,000) was outstanding at the balance sheet date.

During the year the trust invoiced Newton Academy Trust (of which J Griffiths is a trustee) £nil
(2023: £39,915), of which £nit {2023: £nil) was outstanding at the balance sheet date.

During the year the trust invoiced the Archdiocese of Liverpool (a sponsor of the trust) £1,250
(2023: £31,211), of which £1,250 (2023: £31,211} was outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he or she is 8 member, or within one year after he or she ceases to
be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities
contracted before he or she ceases to be a member,

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA, In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024, in addition to £21,551 from St Margaret's on transfer in
the academy trust received £86,126 and disbursed £80,778 from the fund. As at 31 August 2024,
the cumulative unspent 16-19 bursary fund is £26,899, of which £nil relates to undistributed funding
that is repayahle to ESFA. Comparatives for the accounting peried ending 31 August 2023 are
£68,023 received, £75,121 disbursed, total cumulative unspent fund of £43,102 of which £nil was
repayable to ESFA,

The academy trust collects and distributes funds as an agent for the Liverpool School Sports
Partnership. In the accounting period ending 31 August 2024, the trust received £31,734 (2023:
£21,136) and disbursed E335,949 (2023: £149,038) from the fund. An amount of £nil (2023:
£304,215) is included In other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable to the
Liverpool School Sports Partnership.
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30 Conversion to an academy

On 1 March 2024 St Mary's Catholic Infant Academy and St Mary's Catholic Junior Academy
converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets
and liabilities were transferred to The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust
from the St Helens Local Authority for £nil consideration.

On 1 April 2024 St Teresa of Lisieux Cathofic Primary Academy converted to academy trust status
under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to
The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust from the Liverpool Local

Authority for £nil consideration,

On 1 May 2024 St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy converted to academy trust status
under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to
The Liverpool Joint Catholic and Church of England Academies Trust from the Liverpool Local
Authority for £nil consideration.

The transfers have been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
financial activities as donations - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities,

Academy Location Date of conversion
St Mary's Catholic Infant Academy St Helens 1 March 2024
St Mary's Catholic Junior Academy St Helens 1 March 2024
St Teresa of Lisieux Catholic Primary Liverpool 1 April 2024
St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Liverpool 1 May 2024
Academy
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2024
Net assets transferred: £'000 £'000 £'0600 £'000
Cash 149 - - 149
Pension scheme surplus - 1,457 - 1,457
149 1,457 - 1,606
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2024
Funds surplus/(deficit) transferred: £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
LA budget funds 149 - - 149
LGPS pension funds - 1,457 - 1,457
149 1,457 - 1,606
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30 Conversion te an academy {Continued})

St Mary's Catholic Infant Academy and St Mary's Catholic Junior

Academy

Unrestricted Restricted funds Total

funds General Fixed asset 2024

Funds surplus/(deficit) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
transferred:

School private fund 149 _ . 149

LGPS pension funds - 460 . 460

149 460 - 609

St Teresa of Lisieux Catholic Primary Academy

Unrestricted Restricted funds Total

funds General Fixed asset 2024

Funds surplus/(deficit) £'000 £°000 £'000 £000
transferred:

School private fund - . . -

LGPS pension funds - 553 - 553

- 553 - 553

St Cleopas' Church of England Primary Academy

Unrestricted Restricted funds Total

funds General Fixed asset 2024

Funds surplus/{deficit) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
transferred:

School private fund _ . . .

LGPS pension funds _ 444 _ 444

- 444 - 444
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31 Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust (Continued)
Hope Academy Transfer in
recognised

Net assets acquired £'000
Leasehold land and buildings 16,131
Other tangible fixed assets as7
Investments 952
Cash and cash equivalents 1,806
Pension scheme (496)
Total net assets 18,850

There were no fair value adjustments required to the values reported by the transferring trust,

St Margaret's Church of England Academy
Transfer in

recognised
Net assets acquired E'000
Leasehold land and buildings 14,268
Other tangible fixed assets 1,564
Government loans (31)
Cash and cash equivalents 21
Pension scheme {522)
Total net assets 15,300

There were no fair value adjustments required to the values reported by the transferring trust.
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